
HOUSING, PLANNING AND REGENERATION, AND REGULATORY SERVICES 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

This meeting will be recorded and the sound recording subsequently made available via 
the Council’s website: charnwood.gov.uk/pages/committees

Please also note that under the Openness of Local Government Bodies Regulations 2014 
that other people may film, record, tweet or blog from this meeting.  The use of any 
images or sound recordings is not under the Council’s control.

To: Councillors Bradshaw, Brennan, Capleton, Grimley (Chair), Hunt, Needham and 
Ranson (Vice-Chair) (For attention)

All other members of the Council
(For information)

You are requested to attend the meeting of the Housing, Planning and Regeneration, and 
Regulatory Services Scrutiny Committee to be held in Committee Room 1 - Council 
Offices on Tuesday, 2nd July 2019 at 6.00 pm for the following business.

Chief Executive

Southfields
Loughborough

24th June 2019

AGENDA

1.  APOLOGIES

2.  DISCLOSURES OF PECUNIARY AND PERSONAL INTERESTS

3.  DECLARATIONS - THE PARTY WHIP

4.  QUESTIONS UNDER SCRUTINY COMMITTEE PROCEDURE 11.16

No questions were submitted.

Public Document Pack

Page 1

file:///C:/Users/karenw/AppData/local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary%20Internet%20Files/Content.Outlook/NU3M8P7G/charnwood.gov.uk/pages/committees


5.  NEW SCRUTINY COMMITTEE STRUCTURE - TERMS OF 
REFERENCE

3 - 10

A report of the Head of Strategic Support outlining the Housing, Planning, 
Regeneration, and Regulatory Services Scrutiny Committee’s terms of reference.

6.  2018-19 QUARTER 4 PERFORMANCE MONITORING AND END 
OF YEAR OUTTURN REPORT

11 - 34

A report of the Strategic Director providing performance monitoring information and 
results for the fourth quarter of 2018-19 and end of year outturn in respect of the 
Corporate Plan objectives and key performance indicators, including anti-social 
behaviour and housing repairs complaints.

7.  WORK PROGRAMME 35 - 38

A report of the Head of Strategic Support enabling the Committee to review and 
agree the scrutiny work programme.

FUTURE MEETING DATES

Future meeting dates of the Committee are as follows:

3rd September 2019
10th December 2019
3rd March 2020

Page 2



REFERENCE   
 
Purpose of Report 
 
To provide the Housing, Planning and Regeneration, and Regulatory Services 
Scrutiny Committee with information regarding its remit and terms of reference.  
 
Recommendation 
 
That the information regarding the remit and terms and reference of the 
Committee set out in Part B of, and the appendix to, this report be noted. 
 
Reason 
 
To assist the effective working of the Committee as part of the Council’s new 
scrutiny committee structure. 
 
Policy Justification and Previous Decisions 
 
The Council commissioned the Centre for Public Scrutiny to undertake a review 
of its scrutiny arrangements that was completed in 2018.  One of the 
recommendations of that review was that the scrutiny committee structure 
should be changed to one that was more outcome focussed, for example by 
following the Council’s directorate structure.  Following consideration by the 
then Scrutiny Management Board, a new scrutiny committee structure was 
agreed by full Council on 25th February 2019 for implementation from the start 
of the 2019/20 Council year. 
 
Implementation Timetable including Future Decisions and Scrutiny 
 
The new scrutiny committee structure will operate from the start of the 2019/20 
Council year and scrutiny committees will operate within that structure and the 
remit and terms of reference set out in the Council’s Constitution.  A summary 
of those arrangements is set out in Part B of this report to assist the effective 
working of the Commission. 
 
Report Implications 
 
The following implications have been identified for this report. 
 
Financial Implications 
 
There are no financial implications. 
 
 
 

HOUSING, PLANNING, REGENERATION AND REGULATORY SERVICES 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE – 2ND JULY 2019 

 
Report of the Head of Strategic Support 

 
Part A 

 
ITEM 5 NEW SCRUTINY COMMITTEE STRUCTURE – TERMS OF 

Page 3

Agenda Item 5



 
Risk Management 
 
There are no specific risks associated with this decision. 
 
 
Background Papers: Centre for Public Scrutiny Report, February 

2018 
Council 25th September 2019, item 6.5 and 
minute 77.5 

 
 
Officers to contact:   Adrian Ward 

Head of Strategic Support 
(01509) 634573 
adrian.ward@charnwood.gov.uk 
 

 
     Karen Widdowson 
     Democratic Services Manager 
     (01509) 634785 
     karen.widdowson@charnwood.gov.uk 
 

Page 4

https://www.charnwood.gov.uk/files/papers/smb_13_june_2018_item_08_centre_for_public_scrutiny_update/SMB%2013%20June%202018%20Item%2008%20Centre%20for%20Public%20Scrutiny%20Update.pdf
https://www.charnwood.gov.uk/files/papers/smb_13_june_2018_item_08_centre_for_public_scrutiny_update/SMB%2013%20June%202018%20Item%2008%20Centre%20for%20Public%20Scrutiny%20Update.pdf
https://charnwood.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=138&MId=228&Ver=4
https://charnwood.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=138&MId=228&Ver=4
mailto:adrian.ward@charnwood.gov.uk
mailto:karen.widdowson@charnwood.gov.uk


Part B 
 

Scrutiny Principles 
 
1. Scrutiny is an integral part of local authority governance.  Rather than 

making decisions, the role of scrutiny is to improve decision-making by 
others through reviewing decisions and actions that have been taken and 
suggesting improvements that could be made.  It ensures that the Cabinet 
can be held to account and that a broad range of councillors can be involved 
in policy development.  Scrutiny can also provide an opportunity for the 
views of the public, businesses, community groups and others to be 
considered when reviewing the Council’s activities. 

 
2. One of the key jobs that scrutiny does is to hold decision-makers (especially 

the Council’s Cabinet) to account for their decisions.  Scrutiny bodies have 
the power to require Cabinet members to attend their meetings and explain 
the decisions they have taken, and progress with delivering the Council’s 
policies and performance targets.  Having heard from decision-makers and 
gathered other evidence, for example from good practice elsewhere, 
scrutiny bodies are able to make recommendations on how things could be 
improved. 

 
3. A useful guide to undertaking scrutiny can be to consider the four principles 

of good scrutiny identified by the Centre for Public Scrutiny.  These are that 
scrutiny: 

 
(i) provides a ‘critical friend’ challenge to the Cabinet  
(ii) enables the voice and concerns of the public to be heard 
(iii) is independent and owned by scrutiny councillors 
(iv) drives improvement in local services.   

 
4. The Council’s Constitution sets out the rules governing how scrutiny 

committees operate, including the powers that are available to them and 
their roles and responsibilities.  These are set out below and in the attached 
appendix. 

 
General Functions 
 
5. The general principles regarding how scrutiny should operate have been 

incorporated into the rules set out in the Council’s Constitution.  These set 
out that the key functions of the Council’s scrutiny committees are to: 

 

• hold the executive to account by reviewing decisions of the Cabinet 
and the Council’s progress in achieving its policy aims and 
performance targets.  

• develop and review policy by studying policy issues in detail, carrying 
out its own research and consultation on policy and involving the 
public in developing policy.  

• hold other public service providers to account where appropriate. 
 

6. The Constitution also sets out the methods available to scrutiny committee 
in performing those functions.  These are based on the understanding that 
scrutiny works best when it makes recommendations (principle (i) and 

Page 5



principle (iv)) that are based on robust and wide-ranging evidence (principle 
(ii) and principle (iii)).  Those methods are to: 

 

• require Cabinet members and senior officers to attend their 
meetings and answer questions  

• invite other people to their meetings and gather evidence from 
them 

• monitor the Forward Plan and call for reports on items that are 
coming up 

• send reports and recommendations to the Cabinet or full Council 
on matters that have been scrutinised   

• Hold longer inquiries into more complex matters. 
 

Functions Specific to Each Committee 
 
7. The Constitution also sets out the specific functions of each committee 

based on these principles and methods.  These are set out in full in the 
appendix to this report.  In the case of the three directorate-based 
committees the same ten core functions are identified for each committee.   
 

8. The Neighbourhoods and Community Wellbeing has an additional function 
of acting as the Council’s crime and disorder committee by scrutinising the 
discharge of crime and disorder functions by the Council and other 
agencies through the Community Safety Partnership.  This is a statutory 
function and has been allocated to the Neighbourhoods and Community 
Wellbeing Scrutiny Committee as the majority of the Council’s functions in 
relation to community safety sit within the Neighbourhoods and Community 
Wellbeing directorate. 

 
9. The Scrutiny Commission has different functions to reflect its role in co-

ordinating the work of scrutiny and undertaking pre-decision scrutiny.  Its 
functions relating to setting the overall scrutiny work programme are 
discussed in paragraphs 10 and 11 below.  The other functions of the 
Scrutiny Commission are: 

 

• Pre-decision scrutiny – this provides the opportunity for reports to 
be scrutinised before they are submitted to the Cabinet.  The 
Commission can use this process to examine the reasoning 
behind the recommendations that are being made to the Cabinet 
and suggest possible alternative recommendations.  

• Monitoring the effectiveness of scrutiny through reviewing the 
implementation of recommendations – in order to ensure that 
scrutiny is making a difference the Commission will receive 
information on the number of recommendations being made by 
scrutiny committees and panels, the actions agreed by the 
Cabinet (or other body) in response to those recommendations 
and the implementation of those actions. 

• Responding to Councillor Calls for Action – Councillor Calls for 
Action provide a means for councillors to raise issues that affect 
their ward when other attempts to resolve that issues have been 
unsuccessful.  The role of the Commission is to decide whether 
the issue should be added to the scrutiny work programme. 

• Considering petitions holding officers to account in accordance 
with the Council’s Petition Scheme – if a petition on an issue has 

Page 6



at least 2,000 signatures the relevant officer will give evidence 
about the issue to a meeting of the Commission. 

 
Work Programming 
 
10. The Scrutiny Commission has overall responsibility for the scrutiny work 

programme.  As a result it can amend the work programmes of the other 
scrutiny committees and establish standing and ad hoc panels to undertake 
more detailed scrutiny inquiries.  This enables the Commission to keep an 
overview of the whole of the work of the scrutiny function to ensure that the 
resources of councillors and officers are used effectively by avoiding 
duplication and enabling cross-directorate corporate issues to be 
scrutinised. 
 

11. Each of the directorate-based scrutiny committees can identify and 
schedule items for its own work programme as long as they fall within its 
area of responsibility.  If a directorate-based committee identifies a topic for 
scrutiny that is outside its remit it can make a recommendation to the 
Scrutiny Commission that it is added to the work programme of the 
committee whose remit it falls within. 

 
12. This Committee will have responsibility for scrutinising all the services 

delivered by the Housing Planning Regeneration and Regulatory Service 
directorate, including  

• landlord services / council housing,  

• strategic & private sector housing, homelessness,  

• planning & development control,  

• building control,  

• car parks,  

• environmental health  

• street management 
 
Appendix 
 
Functions of Scrutiny Committees – Extract from the Council’s Constitution 
 
 
  

Page 7



 
APPENDIX 

 
Functions of Scrutiny Committees 
 
 

Body  Areas of work  

Scrutiny Commission  (i) Setting, managing and controlling the 
scrutiny work programme and coordinating 
scrutiny generally 
(ii) Establishing scrutiny panels and 
determining their scope, terms of reference 
and timing 
(iii) Considering recommendations from 
scrutiny panels before they are referred by 
the Commission to Cabinet, Council or a 
committee 
(iv) Reviewing proposed decisions on the 
Forward Plan and the agenda for 
forthcoming Cabinet meetings and making 
recommendations to Cabinet in respect of 
those proposed decisions 
(v) Responding to Councillor Calls for 
Action 
(vi) Monitoring the effectiveness of scrutiny 
through reviewing the implementation of 
recommendations 
(vii) Considering petitions holding officers to 
account in accordance with the Council’s 
Petition Scheme 

Corporate Services 
Scrutiny Committee  

For the services falling within the Corporate 
Services Directorate: 
(i) Scrutiny of external public service 
providers and partners 
(ii) Scrutiny of outside bodies, especially 
those which the Council gives grants to 
and/or has service level agreements with 
(iii) Scrutiny of services which are shared 
with other local authorities including joint 
scrutiny of those services 
(iv) Receiving regular performance and 
financial monitoring reports 
(v) Identifying areas of underperformance 
or where performance could be improved 
which requires further scrutiny 
(vi) Investigating how improvements in 
performance can be made through 
examining best practice and performance 
at other councils 
(vii) Engaging at the earliest possible stage 
when the Council reviews existing policies 
or identifies the need for new policies to 

Page 8



Body  Areas of work  

provide scrutiny input into the process for 
developing those policies 
(viii) Identifying where new or existing 
services may need a policy document to 
describe how they will be delivered 
(ix) Reviewing the processes used to 
develop policy, including how consultation 
and stakeholder engagement are 
undertaken, the format of policy documents 
and how the successful implementation of 
policies is measured 
(x) Looking at other ways in which scrutiny 
can assist in policy formulation 

Housing, Planning, 
Regeneration & 
Regulatory Services 
Scrutiny Committee  

For the services falling within the Housing, 
Planning, Regeneration & Regulatory 
Services Directorate: 
(i) Scrutiny of external public service 
providers and partners 
(ii) Scrutiny of outside bodies, especially 
those which the Council gives grants to 
and/or has service level agreements with 
(iii) Scrutiny of services which are shared 
with other local authorities including joint 
scrutiny of those services 
(iv) Receiving regular performance and 
financial monitoring reports 
(v) Identifying areas of underperformance 
or where performance could be improved 
which requires further scrutiny 
(vi) Investigating how improvements in 
performance can be made through 
examining best practice and performance 
at other councils 
(vii) Engaging at the earliest possible stage 
when the Council reviews existing policies 
or identifies the need for new policies to 
provide scrutiny input into the process for 
developing those policies 
(viii) Identifying where new or existing 
services may need a policy document to 
describe how they will be delivered 
(ix) Reviewing the processes used to 
develop policy, including how consultation 
and stakeholder engagement are 
undertaken, the format of policy documents 
and how the successful implementation of 
policies is measured 
(x) Looking at other ways in which scrutiny 
can assist in policy formulation 

Page 9



Body  Areas of work  

Neighbourhoods & 
Community Wellbeing 
Scrutiny Committee  

For the services falling within the 
Neighbourhoods & Community Wellbeing 
Directorate: 
(i) Acting as the Council’s crime and 
disorder committee by scrutinising the 
discharge of crime and disorder functions 
by the Council and other agencies through 
the Community Safety Partnership 
(ii) Scrutiny of external public service 
providers and partners 
(iii) Scrutiny of outside bodies, especially 
those which the Council gives grants to 
and/or has service level agreements with 
(iiv) Scrutiny of services which are shared 
with other local authorities including joint 
scrutiny of those services 
(v) Receiving regular performance and 
financial monitoring reports 
(vi) Identifying areas of underperformance 
or where performance could be improved 
which requires further scrutiny 
(vii) Investigating how improvements in 
performance can be made through 
examining best practice and performance 
at other councils 
(viii) Engaging at the earliest possible stage 
when the Council reviews existing policies 
or identifies the need for new policies to 
provide scrutiny input into the process for 
developing those policies 
(ix) Identifying where new or existing 
services may need a policy document to 
describe how they will be delivered 
(x) Reviewing the processes used to 
develop policy, including how consultation 
and stakeholder engagement are 
undertaken, the format of policy documents 
and how the successful implementation of 
policies is measured 
(xi) Looking at other ways in which scrutiny 
can assist in policy formulation 

 

Page 10



HOUSING, PLANNING, REGENERATION & REGULATORY SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
2ND JULY 2019 

 
Report of the Director of Housing, Planning, Regeneration & Regulatory Services 

Lead Members: Various 
 

ITEM 6      2018-19 QUARTER 4 PERFORMANCE MONITORING AND END OF 
    YEAR OUTTURN REPORT 
 
Purpose of Report  
 
To provide performance monitoring information and results for the fourth quarter of 
2018-19 and end of year outturn, in respect of the Corporate Plan Objectives and Key 
Performance Indicators for the Housing, Planning, Regeneration & Regulatory 
Services Directorate.  
 
Action Requested  
 
The Committee is requested to note the performance results; associated commentary 
and the explanations provided.  
 
Reason 
 
To ensure that targets and objectives are being met, and to identify areas where 
performance might be improved. 
 
Policy Context  
 
Quarterly reporting of performance is a key element of monitoring progress towards 
delivering the Council’s Corporate Objectives and Initiatives as set out in the Corporate 
Plan and Annual Business Plan.  
 
Background  
 
The Committee receives performance reports on a quarterly basis to allow it to monitor 
progress against achieving the agreed targets which support the delivery of the 
Council’s objectives as set out in the Corporate Plan (2016-2020). As part of the 
scrutiny arrangements it is envisaged that the Committee will be forward and outward 
looking and review performance through investigating how performance can be 
improved, for example by visiting Council’s where performance exceeds that of 
Charnwood.  
 
The attached report presents detailed performance results for the fourth quarter 2018-
19 (and end of year outturn), of the third year of the Corporate Plan (2016-2020) for 
the Housing, Planning, Regeneration & Regulatory Services Directorate. It provides 
explanations and commentary in respect of poor performance or non- achievement of 
targets and details of remedial actions being taken where appropriate. The report 
focuses on detailed information and dashboard reporting in order to provide the 
Committee with the information required to sufficiently scrutinise performance.   
 

Page 11

Agenda Item 6



 
Options Available with Reasons  
 
The Committee has the option to use the performance information to suggest new 
items for its scrutiny work programme. 
 
Financial and Legal Implications  
 
None directly arising from this report.  
 
Risk Management  
 
The risks associated with the options available and proposed actions to mitigate those 
risks are set out in the table below.  
 

Risk Identified Likelihood Impact Risk Management 
Actions Planned 

Failure to maintain a 
rigorous and embedded 
performance 
management framework 
could adversely impact on 
the achievement of the 
outcomes and objectives 
set out in the Council’s 
Corporate Plan. 

Low High Quarterly 
performance 
monitoring, including 
reporting to the 
Senior Management 
Team, and to this 
Committee. 

 

Background Papers: None 

Appendices:   Appendix 1 – Performance information  

Appendix 2 – additional performance information regarding 
Anti Social Behaviour (ASB) and Housing complaints 

Officer(s) to contact: Eileen Mallon 
Director of Housing, Planning, Regeneration & Regulatory      
Services 
(01509 634662) 

    eileen.mallon@charnwood.gov.uk 
 
    Suzanne Kinder 

Corporate Improvement and Policy Officer 
(01509 634504) 

    suzanne.kinder@charnwood.gov.uk  
 

Page 12

mailto:adrian.ward@charnwood.gov.uk
mailto:suzanne.kinder@charnwood.gov.uk


Charnwood Borough Council 
Housing, Planning & Regeneration and Regulatory 

Services Directorate  

Corporate Performance Report 

Quarter 4 & Annual Outturn: 2018-2019 

 

 

P
age 13

nickyc
Text Box
APPENDIX 1



 

Corporate Plan (2016-2020) Priorities 
 

 

 

 

 

 

Creating a Strong and Lasting 
Economy 

 Every Resident Matters  Delivering Excellent Services 

 
“A strong growing and diverse economy 
is good for every business, community 

and household.” 

 
“Every resident is important to us. Our 
vison is to make sure that Charnwood 
is a great place to live for families by 

creating a safe, secure & caring 
environment.” 

 

 
 

“We will maintain our focus on 
meeting our customers’ and 

residents’ needs.”  

New businesses, new homes and improved 
infrastructure will be key features in the next 
four years, with a range of affordable homes, 

new schools, shops and leisure facilities being 
planned to accommodate growth. We will 

support our rural communities, maintaining the 
characteristics that make them special, whilst 
encouraging the rural economy through small 

business investment and tourism opportunities. 
We will embrace innovation and technology so 
that Charnwood can compete on a worldwide 
platform at the highest level. We will maintain 

our commitment to our environment, celebrating 
its significance to both our heritage and future. 

 We want everyone to feel valued, have a 
sense of belonging, share in our successes 
and enjoy life. We will provide opportunities 
to participate in social, leisure and cultural 

activities and in community life. We will also 
look after the more vulnerable members of 

our community and give support to those who 
need it most, especially older people and 

those less able to cope. We will nurture our 
young people and celebrate our rich cultural 
mix. We will welcome new communities so 

that we can all celebrate and enjoy our 
diverse culture. 

 We will provide high quality, affordable 
and responsive services and improve 
online access to them. We are always 

seeking to improve the services that we 
deliver, by providing strong community 

leadership, being well governed, 
accountable, open and transparent. We 
will maintain the financial stability of the 
Council whilst continuing to seek ways 

to deliver better services as efficiently as 
possible. 

 

P
age 14



Performance Overview 

Quarterly reporting of performance is a key element of monitoring progress towards delivering the Council’s 

Corporate Objectives and Initiatives as set out in the Corporate Plan (2016-2020) and Annual Business Plan 

(2018-2019). This report presents detailed performance results for the Quarter 4 of 2018-2019, in respect of the 

Corporate Plan Objectives and Key Performance Indicators for the Housing, Planning & Regeneration and 

Regulatory Services Directorate. It provides explanations and commentary in respect of poor performance, or 

non-achievement of targets, and details of remedial actions being taken where appropriate. 

 

Corporate Performance Objectives: Quarter 4 2018-2019 

Overall, at Quarter 4 there are 41 activities in the Annual Business Plan (2018-2019) which address the 

objectives outlined in the Corporate Plan. There are 9 objectives are reported as red in status this quarter and 32 

are assessed as completed.  

 

Housing, Planning & Regeneration and Regulatory Services Directorate Objectives: Quarter 4 2018-2019 

At Quarter 4 there are 12 activities which are assigned to and are the responsibility of the Housing, Planning & 

Regeneration and Regulatory Services Directorate. There are 3 objectives reported as red and 9 objectives 

graded as completed this quarter. 

 

P
age 15



Corporate Performance Indicators: Quarter 4 2018-2019 

Corporate performance against the Business Plan Indicators at Quarter 4 includes 1 indicator assessed as red, 

3 as amber, and 18 are green.  

Performance against the Key Indicators associated with the Corporate Plan at Quarter 4 includes 7 as green, 1 

indicators rated at amber and 4 indicators are red.  

At the annual outturn this equates to 6 indicators assessed as green, 2 as amber and 4 as red.  

 

Housing, Planning & Regeneration & Regulatory Services Directorate Indicators: Quarter 4 2018-2019 

At Quarter 4 and annual outturn there are 6 Business Plan Indicators which are assigned to and are the 

responsibility of the Housing, Planning & Regeneration and Regulatory Services Directorate. Of these, 1 

indicator is graded as amber and 5 are green.  

Directorate performance against the Council’s Key Indicators, at both Quarter 4 and annual outturn, includes 6 

indicators assessed as green.  

 

 

 

P
age 16



Housing, Planning & Regeneration and Regulatory Services 

Directorate Dashboard 

Quarter 4: 2018-2019 
      
        Business Plan Objectives 

 

 
Business Plan Indicators 

 
 

 
  Key Performance Indicators 

 

 

3

9

0

2

4

6

8

10

6

0

2

4

6

8

10

1

5

P
age 17



Creating a Strong and Lasting Economy 
 

Corporate Plan Outcome  
(2016-2020) 

Business Plan Action 
(2019-2020) 

Measurable 
Success Criteria 

Progress RAG Linked 
Indictors 

SLE2 - PR - Ensure that a growth in 
homes and infrastructure benefits 
residents through improved community 
facilities, affordable housing and 
superfast broadband. 

Complete the milestones in the 
Local Development Scheme 
2018-2021 for the preparation of 
the local plan. 

To publish consultation on 
a draft local plan by 
October 2018. 

The Local Development 
Framework Project Board has 
considered the programme for 
preparing the Local Plan and re-
programmed dates identified for 
the preparation of the draft plan, 
taking account of a range of 
factors affecting the timetable 
including, impacts arising from 
evidence collection (including 
traffic modelling) and staff 
absence.  
 
A revised Local Development 
Scheme was considered by 
Cabinet in March 2019 setting 
out a consultation date of July 
2019.  

 
Objective included within the 

2019/20 Business Plan for 

further progression. 

R   

P
age 18



SLE2 - HOU - Ensure that a growth in 
homes and infrastructure benefits 
residents through improved community 
facilities, affordable housing and 
superfast broadband. 

Bring Empty Homes back into 
use through housing advice/ 
assistance and partnership 
grants. 

50 Homes brought back 
into use as a result of 
action by the Council. 
Complete.  

At the close of Quarter 4, an 
annual total of 55 empty homes 
have been bought back into use 
against the Strategy Target of 
50. Completed at Quarter 4.  

C BP3 G 

SLE3 - RS(2) -Take action to protect the 
environment for future generations and 
ensure a clean borough for all to enjoy. 

As part of the Leicestershire 
'Fly-Tipping' promotional and 
enforcement campaign 
undertake the following: 
 
A) A joint multi-media campaign 
with all Leicestershire District 
Councils, Leicester City Council 
and Leicestershire County 
Council. 
 
B) Investigate all reported fly-
tipping incidents and take action 
where sufficient evidence is 
obtained. 

A) 40% increase in 
awareness of fly-tipping 
offences amongst those 
residents who were 
surveyed at the start and 
end of the campaign. 
Complete.  
 
B) 80% of fly-tipping 
cases referred for legal 
action result in a Fixed 
Penalty Notice or 
Prosecution. Complete. 

A) Completed at Quarter 2. 
 
B) During Quarter 4 – 199 Fly 
tipping cases were investigated. 
31 FPNs issued for littering and 
fly-tipping offences. 100% FPNs 
paid with total fines £2000 
during quarter.  
 
Annual total number of fly-
tipping cases investigated was 
838, with 76 FPNs issued for 
littering & fly-tipping resulting in 
total fines of £5,840 and 100% 
of these were paid.                  
Completed at Quarter 4. 
 

C BP4 G 

P
age 19



SLE4 - RS - Promote the Borough to 
increase tourism and support initiatives 
to help our towns and villages to thrive. 
Develop new and revitalised Town 
Centre Masterplans for Loughborough 
and Shepshed. 

Complete phase 1 of the 
Beehive Lane car park 
improvements and 
refurbishment scheme to 
maintain the long-term viability 
of the car park and encourage 
increased customer car parking 
in Loughborough. 

Installation of new car 
park railings on the top 
floor of Beehive Lane car 
park completed by 31st 
March 2019. 

Following the procurement 
process for the new railing’s 
installation, no suitable Tenders, 
meeting the Council's 
requirements were received. 
The procurement process will be 
reviewed with a view to re-
tendering during 2019-20. The 
procurement of the Fire 
Detection system was 
completed, and contract signed. 
Work for this commenced in 
April and is due to complete by 
July 2019. 
 
Objective included within the 
2019/20 Business Plan for 
further progression. 

 

R   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 20



Every Resident Matters 
 

Corporate Plan Outcome (2016-
2020) 

Business Plan Action 
(2019-2020) 

Measurable 
Success Criteria 

Progress RAG Linked 
Indictors 

ERM1 - RS(1) - Keep our residents safe 
through implementing a new community 
safety plan, combatting ASB and 
investing in emergency planning, food 
safety and safeguarding. 

As part of the Food Hygiene 
Rating Scheme, undertake the 
following actions: 
 
A) Introduce a new procedure to 
allow food businesses to request 
a chargeable re-scoring visit 
prior to the next scheduled 
inspection. Complete. 
 
B) Complete a minimum of 95% 
of High Risk (Risk Ratings A-
C's) Food Safety Inspections. 
Complete. 
 

92% of food 
establishments meeting 
level 3 (broadly compliant) 
within the Charnwood 
Food Hygiene Rating 
System. Complete. 

A) Completed at Quarter 1.  
  
B) 83 high risk inspections were 
undertaken in Quarter 4. The 
total for year is 99% (179 
completed out of 180 open food 
businesses).  
 
97.7% (1409 out of 1442) of 
food businesses are Level 3 or 
above on the National Food 
Hygiene Rating Scheme. 
 
Completed at Quarter 4. 
 

C KI3 G 

ERM1 - RS(2) - Keep our residents safe 
through implementing a new community 
safety plan, combatting ASB and 
investing in emergency planning, food 
safety and safeguarding. 

Review, update and obtain 
Council approval for the 
Charnwood Borough Council 
Gambling Act 2005 'Statement 
of Principles' in order to protect 
our children & vulnerable 
residents by ensuring 
responsible Gambling Premises 
operate across the Borough. 

A) The Statement of 

Principles approved by 

Full Council by January 

2019. Complete.  

B) 90% of premises 

holding a Gambling Act 

Licence (of those 

inspected) comply with 

the legal standards. 

Complete. 

A) Complete at Quarter 3. 
 
B) 11 Gambling Premises have 
been inspected over the year. 
91% (10) were fully compliant on 
first visit with 1 compliant after 
revisit. Completed at Quarter 4. 

C   

P
age 21



ERM1 - RS(3) -Keep our residents safe 
through implementing a new community 
safety plan, combatting ASB and 
investing in emergency planning, food 
safety and safeguarding. 

As part of the 'Don't Muck 
Around' campaign undertake the 
following actions targeted at 
reducing bin side waste and bins 
on streets offences: 
 
A) Undertake a minimum of 3 
Litter & Waste Ward Walks, in 
areas with the highest number of 
reports. Completed.  
 
B) Undertake a minimum of 12 
targeted Litter and Waste 
Patrols in locations with the 
highest number of reports. 
Completed.  
 

Completion of planned 
campaigns to achieve 
20% reduction in bin side 
waste and bins on streets 
offences (baseline set at 
start of campaign). 
Complete.  

A) Completed at Quarter 3. 
 
B) 5 Ward Walks and 12 
targeted litter & waste patrols 
were undertaken during the 
year.  
 
The final monitoring was 
undertaken in January 2019.  
Overall for the targeted locations 
there was a decrease in the 
number of bins on-street of 57% 
(67 bins on street at start 
compared to 29 at the final 
monitoring).  
 
Completed at Quarter 4. 
 

C BP18 G 

ERM1 - LS - Keep our residents safe 
through implementing a new community 
safety plan, combatting ASB and 
investing in emergency planning, food 
safety and safeguarding. 
 

Undertake the 2018/19 
programme of works to install 23 
new communal door entry 
systems in order to provide 
enhanced security for tenants. 

Completion of works, with 
23 new communal door 
entry systems installed. 
Complete. 

 
24 blocks have been completed, 
exceeding the target of 23 
blocks.                                     
Completed at Quarter 4. 

 

C BP16 G 

ERM2 - HOU(1) - Make Charnwood an 
attractive place for all through 
investment in our housing stock, 
funding community groups, and 
providing a range of diverse 
opportunities and events. 

Deploy available resources from 
the Right to Buy Receipts to 
acquire additional properties, to 
meet the housing needs of 
households on the housing 
register. 

Spend the allocated 
budget of £1,953k 
(purchasing between 8 
and 10 properties in 2018-
2019) to meet the housing 
needs of the Borough. 
Complete. 

Sales have been completed on 
11 properties with a further 1 
being progressed, a 3-bed 
house.  
 
To date £2,079,780 has been 
spent or committed and 
£126,780 of the 2019-2020 
budget has been brought 
forward to cover the additional 
spend.                                        
Completed at Quarter 4. 

 

C   

P
age 22



ERM2 - HOU(2) - Make Charnwood an 
attractive place for all through 
investment in our housing stock, 
funding community groups, and 
providing a range of diverse 
opportunities and events. 

Implement the Homelessness 
Strategy Action Plan as 
approved by Cabinet in March 
2018. 

Complete the milestones 
in the Homelessness 
Strategy Action Plan for 
2018-19. Complete.    

All milestones in the 
Homelessness Strategy Action 
Plan for 2018-19 fully met. The 
following activity has taken place 
throughout Quarter 4: 
 
1. A second bid was submitted 
for the Rapid Rehousing Fund in 
March 2019 and the outcome is 
pending.  
 
2. A single referral form and 
process for referrals to Falcon 
Support Services is being set 
up, to make referral processes 
more efficient and effective.  
 
3. The new online Housing 
Register application form was 
launched in March 2019. The 
New Housing Allocations Policy 
was introduced on the 1st April 
2019.  
 
5. A 10 bed space Supported 
Accommodation scheme within 
Charnwood for homeless 
applicants has been 
commissioned. Additionally, 1 
emergency bed space within 
Charnwood for Rough Sleepers 
and those at imminent risk of 
Rough Sleeping has been 
commissioned.  
 
6. Product options for the Social 
Lettings Service have been 
agreed and are due to be 

C   

P
age 23



launched at a Landlord Forum in 
April 2019.  
 
7. The Council’s Discretionary 
Housing Payments Policy has 
been reviewed and can now be 
used for rent in advance and 
deposit payments for Private 
Sector Tenancies.  
 
Completed at Quarter 4. 
 

ERM2 - LS(1) - Make Charnwood an 
attractive place for all through 
investment in our housing stock, 
funding community groups, and 
providing a range of diverse 
opportunities and events. 

Invest in our housing stock 
through the delivery of (an 
estimated) 84 kitchens, 144 
bathrooms, and 308 heating 
installations to provide high 
quality homes for Council 
tenants. 

0% non-decent council 
general needs homes. 

Performance has improved, and 
the kitchen and heating 
installation programmes have 
been completed. At the close of 
Quarter 4, the following were 
delivered: 

▪ Kitchens: 81; 
▪ Bathrooms: 109; 
▪ Heating: 296.  

 
Total = 486 Improvements (50 
less than anticipated target). 
This equates to a 90.7% 
completion rate for the year 
against the anticipated target.  

 
The bathroom programme is 
expected to be completed by the 
end of Q1 2019.  The level of 
non-decency is not affected by 
the slower than expected 
progress on this stream. 
 
Objective included within the 
2019/20 Business Plan for 
further progression.  

R 

BP19 A 

KI5 G 

P
age 24



ERM2 - LS(2) - Make Charnwood an 
attractive place for all through 
investment in our housing stock, 
funding community groups, and 
providing a range of diverse 
opportunities and events. 

Refurbish 10 communal areas 
on the Bell Foundry estate to 
provide an enhanced 
environment for tenants, 
residents and visitors. 

Completion of works, with 
10 communal areas 
refurbished. Complete.  

10 communal areas have been 
refurbished, meeting the target 
set. Completed at Quarter 4. 

C BP20 G 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 25



Business Plan Indicators 

The Business Plan indicators below are those which Charnwood Borough Council directly impacts: 

 
Indicator 

 

 
Quarter 1 
2018/19 

 

Quarter 2 
2018/19 

Quarter 3 
2018/19 

Quarter 4 
2018/19 

Annual Outturn 
2018/19 

Target Result Target Result 

BP3 - Number of Empty Homes 
brought back into use 
(Cumulative Target) 

5 
Homes G 

21 
Homes G 

42 
Homes G 

50 
Homes 

55 
Homes G 

50 
Homes 

55 
Homes G 

 
Exceeded annual target of 55 by bringing a further 5 empty homes back into use over the period.   
 

BP4 - Percentage of fly-tipping 
cases referred for legal action 
result in a Fixed Penalty Notice 
or Prosecution 

100% G 100% G 100% G 80% 100% G 80% 100% G 

 
2 Fly-tipping FPNs for £400 issued in Quarter 4 and paid. 

 
BP16 - Number of communal 
door entry systems installed 
 

      23 Doors 24 Doors G 23 Doors 24 Doors G 

 
Exceeded annual target of 23 by installing an additional communal door (creating a total of 24).  

 
BP18 - Percentage reduction in 
bin side waste and bins on 
streets offences 

      20% Reduction 57% Reduction G 20% Reduction 57% Reduction G 

 
At the end of the project there was a 57% reduction in bins on street offences. There were 67 bins on street in the targeted locations in November 2018 and 29 in 
January 2019 after the final monitoring. 
 

P
age 26



BP19 - Number of kitchens, 
bathrooms and heating streams 
delivered 

   
 

  
536 

Improvements  
486 

Improvements A 
536 

Improvements 
486 

Improvements A 

 
Kitchens: 81; Bathrooms: 109; Heating: 296. Total = 486 Improvements (50 below anticipated target). 90.7% completion rate against anticipated target.  
Tolerance set (below target) at 455 Improvements.    
 

BP20 - Number of communal 
areas refurbished on Bell 
Foundry Estate 

   

   

 
10 

Refurbishments 
10 

Refurbishments G 
10 

Refurbishments 
10 

Refurbishments G 

 
10 communal areas have been refurbished, meeting the target set. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 27



Key Corporate Indicators  

The key indicators below are those which Charnwood Borough Council directly impacts:  

 
Indicator 

 

 
Quarter 1 
2018/19 

 

Quarter 2 
2018/19 

Quarter 3 
2018/19 

Quarter 4 Annual Outturn 

Target Result Target Result 

KI3 - Percentage of food 
establishments that achieve level 
3 (broadly compliant) within the 
Charnwood Food Hygiene Rating 
System 

97.00% G 97.00% G 97.50% G 97.70% 92.00% G 92.00% 95.88% G 

 
 
1409 out of a total of 1442 registered food businesses have been rated at level 3 and above at the end of Quarter 4. 
 
 

KI5 - Percentage non-decent 
council general needs homes 
 

   0% 0% G 0% 0% G 

 
 
Target of 0% met. Core investment programmes for kitchens and bathrooms have been completed.   
 
 

KI6 - % rent collected (including 
arrears brought forward) 
(Cumulative Target) 
 

91.54% G 94.95% G 96.17% G 95.31% 96.75% G 95.31% 96.75% G 

 
 
Target achieved and exceeded by 1.44%. 
 
 

P
age 28



KI11 – Percentage of rent loss 
from void properties 
(Proxy Target) 
 

2.14% G 2.10% G 2.14% G 2.20% 2.16% G 2.20% 2.14% G 

Performance at end of Quarter 4 is 2.16%, rent loss of £456,111 against available rent of £21,157,198. The rent loss breakdown equates to £221,079 for General 
Needs and £235,032 for Sheltered Housing accommodation.  
 
Void turnaround times have been impacted by 14 properties which were having major works completed for a combined total of 1,409 days. There were 6 General 
Needs properties with a combined total of 13 refusals during the period giving a total of 548 void days. 
 
The Voids Working Groups continue to meet regularly to discuss processes and individual properties. In addition to this the Senior Allocations and Lettings 
Officer meets with the Senior Repairs Officer to discuss the weekly voids and prioritise the works.  
 
The Sheltered Housing Review is underway to consider the options to reduce long term voids within the Sheltered Schemes being considered. 

 

The key indicators below are those which Charnwood Borough Council indirectly impacts: 

KI1 - Net additional homes 
provided                                        
(Cumulative Target)  
 

208 
Homes G 

429 
Homes G 

700 
Homes G 

820 
Homes 

1,117 
Homes G 

820  
Homes 

1,117  
Homes G 

 
Surpassed CBC set target for the year. The shortfall on new dwellings over the period 2011 to 2019 is 37 Homes.  
 

KI2 - Number of affordable homes 
delivered (gross)                            
(Cumulative Target) 
 

59 
Homes G 

79 
 Homes R 

126 
Homes A 

176  
Homes 

189  
Homes G 

176  
Homes 

189  
Homes G 

 
Surpassed CBC set target for the year. The shortfall on affordable homes over the period 2011 to 2019 is 30 Homes.  
 

 

P
age 29



HOUSING REPAIRS COMPLAINTS 
 
1. Performance  
 
1.1 Comparison with previous years 

 

Full Year Total number of Repairs and Asset 
Management complaints (All 
stages)1 

2012/13A 340 

2013/14A 317 

2014/15A 193 

2015/16 420 

2016/17 427 

2017/18 390 

2018/19B 244 
 

 Notes  
 

A Information is not directly comparable due to the change in the Corporate Complaints procedure with the 
introduction of the informal stage (Stage 0).   Data provided for information purposes only. 
 

B 31 complaints relating to the correct application of policy or practice have been excluded.  Complaints of this 
nature are not defined as complaints under the Council’s Corporate Complaints Procedure (2015).   

 
 

1.2  Complaint reasons (all stages) 
 

Row Labels Number of Complaints 

Service delay 55 

Service failure 44 

Issue with work completed 42 

Issue with work in progress 35 

Communication 28 

Staff Attitude/Behaviour 26 

Incorrect action taken 7 

Incorrect or insufficient 
information 

5 

Misc 2 

Grand Total 244 

 
 

1.3 Number of complaints received at each stage of the complaints process   
 

Stage Number of Complaints 

Stage 0 210 

Stage 1 28 

Stage 2 6 

Grand Total 244 

                       
1 The number of complaints detailed reflects stage 0, 1 and 2 complaints.  One complaint may pass through 
each stage therefore it will be counted three times.  

Page 30

nickyc_1
Text Box
APPENDIX 2



 
 
1.4 Number of complaints received by Service area  
 

Service Area  Number of Complaints 

Asset Management  93 

Compliance 24 

Repairs  127 

Grand Total 244 

 
 
1.5 Number of Stage 1 complaints upheld or partially upheld by service area  
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 

1.6  Number of Stage 2 complaints upheld or partially upheld by service area 
 

Service Area  
Partially 
Upheld 

Upheld 

Asset Management  1 2 

Repairs  0 2 

Grand Total 1 4 

 
 
Officers to Contact:   Peter Oliver 
     Head of Landlord Services 
     Tel:  01509 634952 
     Email:  peter.oliver@charnwood.gov.uk 
 
     Deborah Bartlett  

Repairs and Investment Manager  
Tel: 01509 634501 
Email: deborah.bartlett@charnwood.gov.uk 
 

 

Service Area 
Partially 
upheld 

Upheld 

Asset Management  1 12 

Repairs  4 5 

Grand Total 5 17 

Page 31

mailto:peter.oliver@charnwood.gov.uk
mailto:deborah.bartlett@charnwood.gov.uk


ANTI-SOCIAL BEHAVIOUR RELATING 
TO THE COUNCIL’S HOUSING STOCK 

 
1. New ASB cases opened by estate - Quarter 4 2018/19 

 

 Estate 
2018/19 

Total 
Q4 Q3 Q2 Q1 

Loughborough - Bell Foundry 155 38 37 42 38 

Sileby 95 6 22 33 34 

Loughborough - Shelthorpe 93 13 20 29 31 

Shepshed 91 20 22 24 25 

Loughborough - Town Centre 
Central 

78 21 9 26 22 

Syston 73 16 21 18 18 

Loughborough - General 67 16 8 20 23 

Loughborough - Warwick Way 67 14 24 14 15 

Loughborough - Thorpe Acre 60 15 13 21 11 

Mountsorrel 46 10 12 9 15 

Thurmaston 43 13 5 12 13 

Loughborough - Ashby Road 42 6 4 10 22 

Quorn 36 11 10 11 4 

Anstey 33 1 11 10 11 

Birstall 21 2 8 8 3 

Barrow Upon Soar 20 8 5 6 1 

Rest of Charnwood 18 1 4 7 6 

Rothley 17 5 3 3 6 

Woodhouse Eaves 7 4 0 2 1 

Grand total 1062 220 238 305 299 

 
The information is based primarily on complaint location.  Where the complaint location is 
unavailable, the incident location has been used. 
 
Cases closed as duplicates/entered in error are included. Cases in this category may be 
closed as such for other reasons in addition to where a case is a true duplicate or has 
been entered in error. For example, where several people have called about the same 
issue, their details are uploaded against a master case record, and the individual cases 
closed as duplicate/entered in error. 
 
 
2. Case closure quarter 4  
  

Cases closed during Q4 Q4 Q3 

Numbers of cases closed 237 293 

Total time open (days) 19,991 18,319 

Average length of time open (days) 84 63 

 
 

Page 32



3. Case resolution rate quarter 4 
 

Case resolution descriptor Q4 Q3 

Numbers of cases closed 189 242 

   of which were resolved 143 203 

Case resolution rate (%) 75.7 83.9 

 
Any cases that were duplicates or entered in error have been excluded from this 
calculation.   
 
 
3.1. Reasons for closure when unresolved quarter 4  
 

Reason for closure when unresolved Nos 

Referred to tenancy & estate management team 3 

Referred to environmental health 2 

Referred to police 5 

Referred to street management 2 

No perpetrator identified 5 

Anonymous complaint (unable to confirm if issue 
resolved) 

11 

Not anti-social behaviour  9 

No evidence in order to take action/insufficient 
evidence to progress 

9 

Grand total  46 

 
  
4. Case closure by disposal quarter 4 (action status at point of closure) 
 

Disposal type Q4 Q3 Q2 Q1 

No further action - other 65 46 124 106 

Other (in this case non-engagement by 
complainant) 

59 111 0 0 

Advice 42 46 36 40 

Entered in error/duplicate 39 54 57 41 

No further action – at request of complainant  11 15 19 12 

Written warning 7 3 4 6 

No further action – no perpetrator identified 5 11 9 9 

Community Protection advice/warning letter 2 0 0 0 

Injunction 2 0 0 2 

No further action – reported for information only 2 2 3 3 

Verbal warning 1 1 1 2 

Mediation 1 0 7 10 

Acceptable behaviour contract 0 0 2 0 

Page 33



Tenancy - extension to introductory tenancy 0 0 0 0 

Notice of seeking possession 0 0 0 0 

Suspended possession order (SPO) 0 0 0 0 

Possession order - outright 0 0 0 0 

Eviction order 0 2 1 1 

Grand total 236 291 263 232 

 
The category Other (in this case non-engagement by complainant), is a new category 
introduced in Q3.  
 
 
5. Open cases at end of quarter 4 
  

Cases open at end quarter  Q4 

Numbers of cases 49 

Total number of days open 6,483 days 

Average length of time  132 days 

 
  
6. Repeat complainants 
 

Repeat and anonymous complainants for cases opened during quarter 4 

Anonymous/no victim or complainant 26 

Reported just once 175 

Reported twice 15 

Reported three times or more 4 

Grand total  220 

 
 

Officers to Contact:   Peter Oliver 
     Head of Landlord Services 
     Tel:  01509 634952 
     Email:  peter.oliver@charnwood.gov.uk 
 
     Andrew Staton   

Landlord Services Manager  
Tel: 01509 634608 
Email: andrew.Staton@charnwood.gov.uk 
 

   
 
      
 

Page 34

mailto:peter.oliver@charnwood.gov.uk
mailto:andrew.Staton@charnwood.gov.uk


 

 

“that the Head of Strategic Support be asked to ensure that committees under the 
new scrutiny committee structure are asked to review their work programmes at 
their first meetings, and are provided with appropriate guidance to assist that, so 
that any items which no longer warrant scrutiny are removed and any items 
requiring scrutiny are added” (minute 43.2 2018/19 refers). 

 
This Committee can identify and schedule items for its own work programme without 
needing the approval of the Scrutiny Commission if those items fall within its area of 
responsibility.  If the committee identifies a topic for scrutiny that is outside its area of 
responsibility, it can make a recommendation to the Scrutiny Commission that it is 
added to the work programme of the relevant scrutiny committee, or that a scrutiny 
panel be established. 
 
 
 

 
ITEM 7  SCRUTINY WORK PROGRAMME  
 
Purpose of the Report 
 
To enable the Commission to review and agree the scrutiny work programme.   
 
Action Requested 
 
To review and amend the scrutiny work programme to ensure that it is fit for purpose 
and that any items which no longer warrant scrutiny are removed and any items 
requiring scrutiny are added (see Appendix 1). 
 
Reason 
 
To enable the Council’s new scrutiny arrangements to operate efficiently and 
effectively. 
 
Policy Justification and Previous Decisions 
 
The Corporate Plan commits the Council to review and improve its approach to the 
delivery of services to ensure it is constantly working to achieve a better service, 
providing better value for money and enhancing the performance and commitment to 
service delivery. 
 
A new scrutiny committee structure was agreed by full Council on 25th February 2019 
for implementation from the start of the 2019/20 Council year.  As part of that process 
the former Scrutiny Management Board reviewed the existing scrutiny work 
programme and resolved:  
 

HOUSING, PLANNING, REGENERATION, AND REGULATORY 
SERVICES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

2ND JULY 2019 
 

Report of the Head of Strategic Support 

Page 35

Agenda Item 7



 

 

1. Housing rent arrears  
2. Housing repairs complaints  
3. Empty homes strategy 
4. Tenancy support 

1. The Local Plan – for 2nd July 2019 meeting 
2. Additional information about ASB and Housing complaints to the Quarterly 

Performance Monitoring Report – at each quarterly meeting 
 
After consultation with the Chair and Vice-chair of the Committee it was agreed that 
the item to consider the Local Plan at its meeting on 2nd July 2019 be removed from 
the Scrutiny Work Programme as the matter will be scrutinised more effectively after 
the second consultation has been completed.  To update the Committee of the current 
position of the Local Plan, a briefing note will be circulated to members of the 
Committee. 
 
Items dated prior to this meeting have been removed from Appendix 1 to avoid 
confusion. 
 
Implementation Timetable including Future Decisions and Scrutiny 
 
Issues identified by the Committee within its own remit will be reflected in an updated 
work programme.  Issues identified for scrutiny outside of the Committee’s remit will 
be recommended to the Scrutiny Commission. 
 
Appendices 
 
Appendix 1 – Scrutiny Work Programme (Housing Planning Regeneration and 
Regulatory Scrutiny Committee) 
   
Background Papers: None 
 
Officer to Contact: Nicky Conway 
 Democratic Services Officer 
 01509 634787 
 nicky.conway@charnwood.gov.uk   

Work Programme Update 
 
The Scrutiny Commission agreed the Scrutiny Work Programme (as attached at 
Appendix 1) at its first meeting on 3rd June 2019.  It considered the Scrutiny Work 
Programme for the Housing, Planning, Regeneration and Regulatory Services 
Directorate that had been agreed at the last meeting of the Scrutiny Management 
Board and removed the following items from the scrutiny work programme: 
 

 
The following items were added by the Scrutiny Commission to the Scrutiny Work 
Programme for the Housing, Planning, Regeneration and Regulatory Services 
Directorate:
 

Page 36

mailto:nadia.ansari@charnwood.gov.uk


 
Responsible 

Body 
Meeting 

Date 
Issue 

Scope of Item / Terms of 
Reference 

Reason for Scrutiny 
Invitees / 
Officers 

Progress / Notes / Action Requested 

HPRRS 

03 Sept 
2019 

 
(standing 
item at 
every 

meeting) 

Work 
Programme 

To consider items for future 
meetings 

To allow the Committee to 
identify items for which 
scrutiny is required. 

N. Conway/ 
Lead Officer  

 
 

HPRRS 

03 Sept 
2019 

 
(annual 
item) 

Full 
Performance 
Information 
(Quarter 1 
Report) 

Monitoring of Performance 
Indicator information and 
Corporate Plan Objectives 
and Initiatives. To also 
include reports on any anti-
social or housing repairs 
complaints. 

To ensure targets and 
objectives are being met.  
To identify areas where 
performance might be 
improved.  

Relevant 
Lead 

Members & 
Heads of 

Service / A. 
Ward & H. 

Gretton 

Item amended by SC at its meeting on 3rd 
June 2019.  
Quarter 1 Report considered at the same 
time annually. 

HPRRS 

 
03 Sept 

2019 
 

(annual 
item) 

Climate Local 
Action Plan 

Monitoring of the Climate 
Change Strategy Action 
Plan 

Monitoring of progress on 
Action Plan. 

Lead 
Member/ M. 
French / D. 

Pendle 

Amended by SC at its meeting on 3rd June 
2019: report to be reviewed by the 
Committee and possibly deleted after its 
meeting if no longer relevant. 

HPRRS 

10 Dec 
2019 

 
 

Progress 
against 
actions in the 
Housing 
Strategy 

To scrutinise progress 
against the actions in the 
Housing Strategy. 

 
Lead 

Member/ A. 
Simmons 

Added by SMB 25 October 2017, see min 
26.1. 
 

HPPRS 

 10 Dec 
2019 

 
(annual 
item) 

Full 
Performance 
Information 
(Quarter 2 
Report) 

Monitoring of Performance 
Indicator information and 
Corporate Plan Objectives 
and Initiatives. To also 
include reports on any anti-
social or housing repairs 
complaints. 

To ensure targets and 
objectives are being met.  
To identify areas where 
performance might be 
improved. 

Relevant 
Lead 

Members & 
Heads of 

Service / A. 
Ward & H. 

Gretton 

Item amended by SC at its meeting on 3rd 
June 2019.  
Quarter 2 Report considered at the same 
time annually. 

P
age 37

nickyc_2
Text Box
APPENDIX 1



Responsible 
Body 

Meeting 
Date 

Issue 
Scope of Item / Terms of 

Reference 
Reason for Scrutiny 

Invitees / 
Officers 

Progress / Notes / Action Requested 

HPRRS 

 03 March 
2020 

 
(annual 
item) 

Full 
Performance 
Information 
(Quarter 3 
Report) 

Monitoring of Performance 
Indicator information and 
Corporate Plan Objectives 
and Initiatives. To also 
include reports on any anti-
social or housing repairs 
complaints. 

To ensure targets and 
objectives are being met.  
To identify areas where 
performance might be 
improved.  

Relevant 
Lead 

Members & 
Heads of 

Service / A. 
Ward & H. 

Gretton 

Item amended by SC at its meeting on 3rd 
June 2019.  
Quarter 3 Report considered at the same 
time annually. 
 
 

HPRRS 

To be 
scheduled 

as 
required 

 
(ongoing 

item) 

Five Year 
Housing 
Land Supply 

If the Council’s housing 
land supply falls below 5.5 
years, a quarterly report to 
be provided and the Lead 
Member to attend to 
explain what actions are in 
place to return the five-year 
housing supply to a 
satisfactory level. 

To ensure that, when 
necessary, the figures are 
scrutinised on a regular 
basis and any actions can 
be identified if required 

Lead 
Member / R. 

Bennett 

Agreed by SMB on 24 October 2018 (min 
25.3) in response to a recommendation by 
the Five-Year Housing Land Supply 
Scrutiny Panel. 

HPRRS 
To be 

scheduled  
Local Plan 

To enable scrutiny of the 
development of the Local 
Plan. 
 
The Local Plan is being 
developed to the timetable 
set out in the Local 
Development Scheme.  
Informal public consultation 
took place in April 2018 and 
further consultation is due 
to take place in the second 
half of 2019. 
 

To ensure appropriate 
scrutiny of the development 
of the Local Plan. 

Lead 
Member/ 

R. Bennett 
/D. Pendle/ 
C. Clarke 

 
Last considered by PSG on 10 July 2018 
at which the results of the first phase of 
consultation were considered (min 6). 
 
 

 
 

P
age 38


	Agenda
	5 New Scrutiny Committee Structure - Terms of Reference
	6 2018-19 Quarter 4 Performance Monitoring and End of Year Outturn report
	7 Work Programme



